Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Cairn Energy
Hydrocarbons Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited (the 'Company') for
the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise: the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and
the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the
director’s assessment of the entity’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
included reviewing detailed forecasts and cashflows for 12 months from the date of signing the audit
report together with the assumptions underpinning these forecasts.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.



We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
¢ certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 15, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which
these are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

*  Enquiry of management around actual and potential litigation and claims;

+ Enquiry of entity staff in tax and compliance functions to identify any instances of non-
compliance with law and regulations;

» Performing audit work over the risk of management override of controls, including testing of
journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale



of significant transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting
estimates for bias;

* Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and

» Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities,
including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with
regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware
of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud
rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or
misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our Auditor's Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's Report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Rakesh Shaunak FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of MHA, Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
21 May 2024

MHA is the trading name of Maclntyre Hudson LLP, a limited liability partnership in England and Wales
(registered number OC312313)
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The directors present their strategic repori for vear ended 31 March 2024

Principal Activities and Business Review
Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited ("Company™) is engaged in the exploration. development and production of oil and gas.

The Company has a 30% interest in the exploration area and a 33° interest in the development area of the Rajasthan block RJ-ON-90 1 (“Rajasthan™) in India.
Average gross production from the Rajasthan block for the year was 106,469 boepd and working interest production was 37.264 boepd.

Joint operation partner, ONGC. has a 30°, participating interest. The Rajasthan block is spread over 3.111 sq. kms west of Barmer district. The block consists of
three contiguous development areas or DA: (1) DA 1. primarily comprising the Mangala. Aishwariva, Raageshwari and Saraswati or MARS fields: (ii) DA 2
primarily consisting of the Bhagyam. NI and NE and Shakii fields: ard (iii} DA 3. comprising the Kaameshwari West fields.

The Mangala field was discovered in January 2004. This was followed by many other discoveries including the Aishwariva and Bhagyam fields. In the Rajasthan
block. 38 discoveries have been established. since inception. The Mangala. Bhagyam and Aishwariva fields (collectively, the “MBA Fields™) are the largest in the
Rajasthan Block and the Mangala field was the first to be developed. having commenced production of commercial crude oil in August 2009. In addition. the
Company has completed the Mangala Processing Terminal (MPT). a ceniralised hub facility to handle crude oil production from the MBA Fields and other fields.
such as Raageshwari. Saraswati and other satellite fields. Since June 2010. sales of crude oil from the Rajasthan Block are made through a pipeline (the “Pipeline™)
of approximately 390 km running from the MPT to Salaya which further extends 73 km to Bhogat. In November 2015. the Salava-Bhogat pipeline and terminal at
Bhogat were commissioned. The terminal provides access to a larger market for Rajasthan crude. The Bhogat terminal is a 160-hectare site located eight km from
the Arabian Sea coast at Bhogat in Jamnagar District, Gujarat.

We have successfully executed the Enhanced Oil Recovery ("EOR”) project in Mangala and has been replicated the same for Bhagyam and Aishwariva fields. We
are also investing in developing Rajasthan potential beyond the MBA fields and presently focusing on - Barmer Hill. Satellite Fields. Infill drilling is ongoing across
all fields in Rajasthan to augment reserves and mitigate natural decline. Also. gas development in the Raageshwarl Deep Gas field continues to be a strategic
priority. To realise the full poteatial of the gas reservoir. an infill drilling campaign is ongoing.

The Company derived gross revenue from oil and gas production of $1.001.86 m (year ended March 2023: $872.04 m) from permit interests in India. During the
current year. the Company made a profit of $239.33m (yvear ended March 2023: profit of $126.74m). Dividend amounting to $263.886m has been paid during the
vear (year ended March 2023: S348.27m).

Year ended March 2024 Year ended March 2023
($°000) (S°000)
Revenue 1.001.860 872,037
Operating Profit 461491 232490
Profit for the year 259.329 126.742
Margin (°0) 25.88% 14.53%

Operations & Projects

During the period. the Block achieved a total production of 39.0 mmboe. Cumulative production tll 31 March 2024 is 748.7 mmboe.

The gross average production for the peried ended March 2024 was at 106.469 boepd. 119 lower vear on vear (yoy). The natural decline in the MBA ficlds has
been partially offset by infill wells brought online in Mangala. Bhagvam. Aishwariya. ABH and RDG fields.

Development Area (DA) 1. primarily comprising the Mangala, Aishwariva. Saraswati and Raageshwari oil & gas fields. produced at a gross average of 92.227
boepd during the vear.

DA 2 comprising of Bhagvam. NI and NE field produced gross average 14.126 boepd during the vear.

DA 3 comprising KW2 produced gross average 116 boepd during the year.

Gas production from Raageshwari Deep Gas (RDG) averaged to 140 million standard cubic feet per day (mmscfd) in FY2024. with gas sales. post captive
consumption. at 116 mmscfd.

With focus on developing the potential of resource base at Rajasthan. continuous efforts are being made to advance key projects to the production stage. The block
comprises a rich set of project portfolio comprising of enhanced oil recovery projects. tight oil. tight gas. facilitv upgradation and appraisal prospects. Infill drilling
is ongoing across all fields in Rajasthan to augment reserves and mitigate natural decline.

As part of the growth projects in Rajasthan 369 wells have been drilled. Of these 302 wells have been hooked up till date.

Gas development in the Raageshwari Deep Gas field continues to be a strategic priority. In order 1o realize the full potential of the gas reservoir. an 8 well infill
drilling campaign is ongoing. As of March 31. 2024, 6 wells have been drilled of which 3 wells are online.

To accelerate production and augment reserves infill drilling is being carmied out across fields in Rajasthan asset Mangala (18 wells). Bhagvam (12 wells).
Aishwariya Upper Fatehgarh (UF) (25 wells). NE (3 wells) and Tight Oil (ABH) (14 wells). As of March 31. 2024. 55 wells have been drilled and 49 wells have
been hooked up across these projects.
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Sales
Crude oil sales arrangements are in place with Public Sector Refineries (PSU) and private refiners.

The Rajasthan crude is well established in the market. generating adequate demand and thereby creating vaiue for its stakeholders. During fiscal year 2024, crude oil
price was benchmarked to Dated Brent. international benchmark crude for low sulphur crude grades.

Resource & Reserve Base
As at March 31, 2024. the gross hydrocarbons in-place in Rajasthan is at 5.2 billion boe. The gross proved plus probable reserves and resources stood at 1.107
mmboe. which includes gross reserves {2P) of 217 mmboe and gross resources (2C) of 890 mmboe.

Section 172 Statement

The following section serves as our “Section 172(1) statement” and explains how the Board considers the interests of key stakeholders and the broader matters set
out ins172 (1) (a)-f) of the Companies Act. 2006 (s172). when performing their duty to promote the success of the Company under s172. the Board's engagement
with those stakeholders and their influence on decision-making.

The Board’s Approach to s172 and Decision-Making

The Board is ultimately responsible for the long-term success of the Company. It recognises that this is dependent on ft
stakeholders in the pursuit of sustainable growth for the benefit of the Company’s shareholders. The Board therefore considers the interests of and the impact of its
decisions on the Company’s key stakeholders as part of its decision-making process. When making decisions. each Director ensures that he: she acts in the way
he she considers. in good faith. would most likely promote the Company’s success for the benefit of its members as a whole. and in doing so. have regard (among
other matters) to those matters set out in 172 including:-

stering goed relationships with its key

{a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term:

(b) the interests of the company’s emplovees:

{¢) the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers. customers. and others:

(d} the impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment:

(e the desirability of the company maintaming a reputation for high standards of business conduct: and
() the need 1o act fairly berween members of the company.

Information
The associated briefing papers circulated t the Board for consideration and approval. detail potential impacts. if any. on the members and other stakeholders and
the long-term consequences for the business.

The s172 assessment is performed internally by the management. and where required. the Board may request external assurance of the quality of information
provided.

Policies and Practices at Group level
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cairn India Holdings Lid. which is ultimately controlled by Vedanta Resources Limited (VRL). At VRL level. there
is an established stakeholder engagement standard. which governs the procedure for identifying key stakeholders and the decisions affecting the Key stakeholders

tincluding those matters in s.172) are delegated to YRL"s subsidiaries and to the Group as a whole. A review of key stakeholders is undertaken every 3 vears and
discussed by the Group Executive Committee.

In hine with the Group's delegated authority structure. stakeholder identification is undertaken at 2 Business Unit level. VRL's social responsibility performance
standard aims to ensure effective engagement with all key stakeholders. A detailed synopsis on the Group’s ongoing engagement with stakeholder groups including
the local community. employees. sharcholders. investors. lenders. civil societies. indusiry {including suppliers. customers. peers, media) and governments can be
found in the relevant sections of the Annual Report of VRL.

Training

The relevance of stakeholder considerations in the context of the Board's decision-making has long been a part of the Board. as they are aligned to the Group's
vision. values. and sustainability principles. We recognise the importance of keeping the interests of our stakeholders at the forefront of decision-making and
continue to provide refresher training to Directors.

We have taken action to make the regular consideration of stakeholder interests a key part of the Company’s business culture. The Board have received briefings on
the Directars” duties as outlined in s172.

Maintaining our Licence to Operate and Compliance with Legislation

Our licence to operate is dictated by our reputation and the way the Company is perceived by its stakeholders. The Board's leadership ensures that the management
runs the businesses in an ethical and responsible manner in relation to all stakeholders. whilst also considering the environmental impact of their decisions and
complying with their statutory obligations to report on the same.

The Group has a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. a Supplier Code of Conduct. and its Whistle-blower Policy. which reinforce the Board's commitment to
operating in an ethical manner in the pursuit of its goals. The Company has also maintained its compliance with the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme by
reporting to the authorities on its energy consumption. In addition, the Board have considered their duties to the stakeholders by complying with the General Data
Protection Regulations.
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Creating Value for our Stakeholders
The Company maintains ongoing dialogue with its stakeholders to undersiand their expectations and how their concemns can be addressed. The due consideration of
stakeholder interests. while encompassing fair treaiment to members of the Company and maintaining highest standards of govemance. forms a vital part of the

Board's deliberations.

The Board ensures that stakeholder considerations are raken into account in strategic decision-making by requiring that all strategic proposals coming to the Board
include an analysis of stakeholder impacts. which form part of the discussions when making decisions.
The Company Secretary provides support to the Board to ensure that sufficient consideration is given to stakeholder issues.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to a variety of risks including those which derive from the nature of the oil and gas exploration and production business and relate to the
countries in which it conducts its activities. Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect performance. Such risk factors are not
intended to be presented in any order of priority. Any of the risks. as well as the other risks and uncertainiies referred to in this report. could have a material adverse
effect on business performance. In addition. the risks set out below may not be exhaustive and additional risks and uncertainties. not presently known to the
Company. or which the Company currently deems immaterial. may arise or become material in the future.

Government of India Arbitration (DGH)

The Government of India ("Gol"), acting through the Directorate General of Hydrocarbons ("DGH"). had raised demand up to 14 May 2020 for Government's
additional share of Prefit Oil. based on its computation of disallowance of cest incurred over retrospective re-allocation of certain common costs berween
Development Areas (DAs) of Rajasthan Block: exploration costs and certain other martters aggregating to USS 1,162 million and applicable interest thereon
representing share of Vedanta Limited and its subsidiary. The Company had received the Final Pariial Award dated 22 August 2023 from the Arbitration Tribunal
1al') as amended by order dated 15 November. 2023 and 08 December 2023 (“the Award™) . dismissing the Government’s contention of additional Profit
Petroleum in relation to allocation of common development costs across Development Areas and certain other matters in accordance with terms of the Production
Sharing Contract for Rajasthan Block. while disallowing some matters. Further. the Tribunal had decided that the Company was allowed to claim cost recovery of
exploration cost for the purpose of computation of Profit Oil. GOI also had filed an appeal on 07 March 2024 against the Award in Delhi High Court and the matter
was heard on 14 March 2024, No stay was granted and petition was not admitted. Next date of hearing is 21 May. 2024. In the interim. vide letter dated 06 May
2024, GOI has submirted its calculation of the quantum basis the Award. GOI has claimed a sum of USS 223 million from the Company.

Mitigation:

The Company is of the view that there is no merit in the challenge filed by GOL as the Court cannot re-appreciaie the evidence in Section 34 appeal as the
interpretation by the Tribunal is plausible

In the interim. vide letter dated 06 May 2024, GOI has submitted its calculation of the quantum basis the Award. GOI has claimed a sum of USS 224 million from
the Company.

The Company is of the view that it is in conirary to the Award and clarification issued by the Tribunal in the GOI's reconsideration application. Further the
Company is evaluating the computation of quantum and is confident that it can defend against the quantum raised by GOL

Crude oil and natural gas reserves are estimates and actual recoveries may vary significantly

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating crude oil and natural gas reserves. Reservoir engineering follows a subjective process of estimating
underground accumulations of crude oil and natural gas. It is well understood that these cannot be measured in an exact manner. Through enhanced understanding
of the reservoirs. achieved by undertaking additional work. these risks are gradually mitigated. Reserves estimations involve a high degree of judgement and it is a
function of the quality of the available data ard the engineering and geological interpretation. Results of drilling. testing. and production may substantially change
the reserve estimates for a given reservoir over a period.

For these reasons. actual recoveries may vary substantially. Such variation in results may materially impact Company’s actual production. revenue and expenditures.

Mitigation:

* Dedicated exploration cell with continuous focus on enhancing exploration capabilities.

« Appropriate organisation and adequate financial allocation in place for exploration.

* Strategic priority is to add to our R&R by extending resources at a faster rate than we deplete them. through continuous focus on drilling and exploration
programme.

* Exploration Executive Committee (EXCo) has been established to develop and implement strategy and review projects group wide.

* Continue to make applications for new exploration tenements in countries in which we operate under their respective legislative regimes..

* Exploration-related systems being sirengthened. and standardised group wide and new technologies being utilised wherever appropriate. f

« International technical experts and agencies are working closely with our exploration teams to enhance our capabilities.
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Internarional prices for oil & gas are volatile, and have a significant effect on us

The majority of our revenue is derived from sales of crude oil and natural gas in India. The price that we receive for these hvdrocarbons is linked to their
intemational prices. Historicaily. intemational prices for crude oil and natural gas have tluctuated as a result of many macro-economic. geo-political and regional
facters. Additionally. there is continuous trend of shift to renewable energy sources which can have effect on future demand and prices of crude oil. Substantial or
extended declines in international crude oil and gas prices could have an adverse effect on the economics of existing proposed projects. capex outlay, results of
operations and financial condition.

Mitigation:
Company considers exposure to commeodity price fluctuations to be an integral part of the its business and its usual policy is to sell its products at prevailing
market prices and not to enter into price hedging arrangements. Finance standing committee reviews all forex and commodity related risks and suggests necessary

courses of action as needed by business divisions.

Execution challenges in respect of Work Programme

To capitalize on the potential of our resources. Company has regular plans 1o implement sustenance and growih projecis. Some of these projects have long
execution timelines. have interdependencies. and are brown-field involving tie-ins with existing facilities. Company has entered into integrated development
contracts for various projects: however, successful implementation of the work programme depends on integrated development contractor. equipment and services
providers. construction contractors ete. Delivery of services and equipment as per schedule. of the right quality and cost. managing security of men and materials at
remote sites. and ensuring all compliances are met. could pose a potential challenge.

Under our PSCs and the regulatory framework thar we are governed by. we are required to obiain necessary approvals from our Joint Venture (“JV™) partmers,
Management Commitice (comprising of nominees of Gol. JV partners and our management). and otker relevant regulatory authorities. Any delays due to above
dependencies may delay our project execution and have an adverse impact on project completion and consequently on operational and financial performance.

Mitigation:

» Empowered organisation structure has been put in place to drive growth projects. Project Management systems streamlined to ensure full accountability and value
stream mapping.

+ Standard specifications and SOPs for all operations to avoid variability. Reputable contractors are engaged to ensure completion of the project on indicated
umelines.

* Robust quality control procedures have also been implemented to check safety and quality of services design actual physteal work.

* The Company and its business divisions moniter regulatory developments and requirements on an ongoing basis with our JV" partrers.

Health and safety related performance of our staff including contractors / sub-contractors

Compliance with applicable health and safety requirements and regulations are an inherent part of our business which imposes controls on aspects such as. but not
limited to. the storage. handling and transportation of petroleum products. employee exposure to hazardous substance etc.

The Company also depends on multiple contractors for the delivery of projects. construction. on-going operations. maintenance activities and road transportation of
individuals and materials. Inadequate health and safety performance either on our part or non- performance of our contractors is considered a key risk to personnel
safery and company’s reputation.

Mitigation:

* Health Safety & Environment { HSE) is priority area for Company. Compliance with international and local regulations and standards. protecting our people.
commumnities and the environment from harm and our operations from business interruptions are key focus areas

* Policies and standards are in place to mitigate and minimise any HSE-related occurrences. Safety standards issued continue to be issued to reduce risk level in high
risk areas. Structured monitoring and a review mechanism and system of positive compliance reporting are in place.

* The Company has implemented a set of standards to align its sustainability framework with international practice. A structured sustainability assurance
programme continues to operate in the business divisions covering environment. health. safety, community relations and human righis aspecis. and is designed to

embed our commitment at operational level.

Project Assessment and Delivery

Prior to sanction of any development project it is necessary to determine with suitable accuracy the resource base, the optimal production profile of the field. the
costs of development. the time it will take to complete the development as well as commencing or concluding commercial arrangements with buyers for the sale of
the o1l or gas produced. Risks during the pre-sanction period are typically technical. engineering, commercial or regulatory in nature. Specific risks include the
possible over-estimation of crude oil and natural gas initially in place and recoverable. inadequate technical and geophysical assessment. inaccurate cost estimations.
not securing appropriate long-term commercial agreements or. where required. applicable governmental or regulatory consents. permits. licences or approvals. This
can cause delays to the commercialisation of reserves and this may have a material effect on medium to long-term cash flow and income.

Post sanction. preject delivery is particularly subject to technical. commercial. contractual. and economic risks. Projects can be unsuccessful for many reasons.
including availability. competence and capability of human resources and contractors. mechanical and technical difficulties and infrastructure consiraints. resulting
in cost increases. delays in completion and deferral of income from production from the field under development. In addition. some development projects may
require the use of new and advanced technologies or produce hydrocarbons from challenging reservoirs, which can exacerbate such problems.
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Mitigation:

* Project management committee and project operating committee have been set to provide support to the outsourcing partner and address issues on time to enable
better quality control as well as timely execution for growth projects.

* Discussions within teams as well as with partners have been initiated with an objective to optimise cost across all spheres of operations.

+ Constant engagement with vendors pariers to ensure minimal project delay based on the current siuation and plan to ramp-up.

Operational risks relating to plant uptime

The Company's revenues are dependent on the continued production from its operating tacilities in India. Operational risks include maintaining asset integrity.
which can be affected by a number of factors including not following prescribed operating and maintenance procedures resulting in reduced plant availability.
unplanned shutdowns and or equipmient failure. The location of some of the Company’s operations may get exposed to natural hazards such as cyvclones. flooding
and earthquakes, these factors may have an adverse effect on planned output levels. cost control, or a potentially material impact on the Company s reputation and
the results of the Company’s operations.

Mitigation:

* The Company has implemented a set of standards to align its sustainability framework with international practice. A structured sustainability assurance programme
continues to operate in the business divisions covering environment. health. safety. community relations and human rights aspects. and is designed to embed our
comunitment at operational level.

» The company has appropriate policies in place for occupational health-related matters. supported by structured processes. controls and technology.

Non-suitability of our crude oil for Indian refineries could restrict our ability to monetize our reserves

Our PSC does not permit to export crude oil. which could restrict our ability to monetize reserves. Under the PSC the Company is obliged to sell 1009 of its crude
oil production to the GOL which nominates the buyer(s). GOI has only nominated part of the Rajasthan crude production volume to PSU refineries and allowed for
sale of balance volume to domestic private refineries.

Mitigation:
The company has entered into annual contract with Private Sector Reflneries for balance volume of crude oil. Also, the Bhogar terminal is now operational
providing us with additional evacuation options for RJ crude oil across coastal refineries.

Regulatory uncertainties may impact the Company’s business

The Company's business might be atfected by changes in legal and regulatory conditions by the central. state, local laws and regulations such as production
restrictions. changes in taxes. royalties and other amounts pavable to the various governments or their agencies. Further. for executing its projects and running
operations. various approvals are required from Joint venture partner and Government. Delay in securing such approvals can adversely impact the operations.
Similarly, any demand from

Government of India requiring additional profit petroleum. if crystalizes. will have adverse impact on company's financial performance.

Mitigation:

* The company monitors regulatory developments on an ongeing basis.

* Legal counsels within the company continues to work on strengthening the compliance and governance framework and the resolution of legal dispures.
Competent in-house legal organisation is in place and the legal team have been sirengthened with induction of sentor legal professionals.

» Standard operating procedures (SOPs) have been implemented for compliance monitoring.

Exchange Rates

The Company's Statement of Cash Flows. Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position are reported in US Dollars and may be significantly affected by
fluctuarions in exchange rates.

Mitigation:

¢ Our forex policy prohibits forex speculation.

* Finance standing committee reviews all forex risks and suggests necessary courses of action as needed.

* Notes to the financial statements in the Annual Report give details on the accounting policy followed in calculating the impact of currency translation.

Inadequate insurance coverage

Consistent with good industry practice. an insurance programme is in place to mitigate significant losses. There is a risk. however. that the Company’s insurance
policies may not be suificient in covering all losses which it or any third parties may suffer. If the Company sutfers an event for which it is not adequately insured.
there is a risk that this could has e a material adverse effect on its business. results of operations and financial condition. The insurance programme is also subject to
certain limits. deductibles and other terms and conditions.
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Mitigation:
* Vedanta Resources Limited ( Ultimate Parent company) has taken appropriate group msurance cover to mitigate this risk. An external agency reviews the risk
portfolio and adequacy of this cover and assists us in our insurance portfolio.

* Our underwriters are reputed institutions and have capacity to underwrite our risk. f

+ Established mechanism of periodic insurance review in place. However, any occurrence not fully covered by insurance could have an adverse effect on the
business .

Corporate Responsibility (CR)

The Company recognises that applying its CR Policies and "Guiding Principles’ in all activitles is essential in maintaining its “licence to operate” and business
reputation. CR risks occur when any part of the business fails to implement these policies and “Guiding Prirciples’.

CR risks that could affect the Company’s ability to deliver projects on time and within budget include inadequate stakeholder engagement, failure to put in place
appropriate conirols to mitigate environmental and social impacts. not having adequate processes in place to protect human rights in activities in our “sphere of
influence” and the inetfective unplementation of health and safety policies. which could also lead to health problems and injuries at the Company”s worksites.

The Company s producing fields and construction projects carry significant health. safety and environmental risiks.

Mitigation:

tems. These provide the basis for managers and supervisors to conduct

The Company seeks 1o minimise these risks though deployment of incident management s
investigations and identify risk exposures and implement appropriate steps to minimise the risks to people. facilities and the environment.

Road wranspertation has been identified as a key safety risk in our activities and appropriate measures are in place aimed at minimising the potential for accidents or
erivironmental fmpacts.

War, Terrorist Attack and Natural Disasters

The Company 's business may be adversely affected by a war. terrorist aniack. natural disaster or other catastrophe.
Mitigation:

» The company has taken appropriate insurance cover to mitigate the risk.

» Established mechamsm of periodic insurance review in place . However. any occurrence not fully covered by insurance could have an adverse effect on the

business.

« Continuous monitoring and periodic review of security function.

Risks and uncertainties of Vedanta Limited. which includes this Company. are discussed in detail within the annual report of the parent undertaking, Vedanta
Limited.

Streamlines Energy Carbon Reporting
The main operations of the company gre based in India. as such. the company is below the de minim

limit for SECR and therefore no disclosures are made.

e

Approved by the board of directors and Signed on behalf of the board by Directors

Date : 20 May 2024
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Directors Report
The directors present their report and financial statements for year ended 31 March 2024

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and subsequently are as follows:
Hitesh Narendra Vaid (appointed w.e.f. July 17. 2020)

Aamir Husain Rizvi (appointed w.e.f. June 07, 2022)

Willem Anton Smit (appointed w.e.f. March 25, 2022)

Financial Instruments

The Company’s primary financial instruments comprise cash and short and medium-term deposits, loans and other receivables
and financial liabilities held at amortised cost. The Company’s strategy has been to finance its operations through a mixture of
retained profits and bank borrowings. Other alternatives, such as equitv finance and project finance are reviewed by the
Board, when appropriate, to fund substantial acquisitions of oil and gas development projects.

The Company treasury function is responsible for managing investment and funding requirements including banking and cash
flow monitoring. It must also recognise and manage interest and foreign exchange exposure whilst ensuring that the Company
has adequate liquidity at all times in order to meet its immediate cash requirements.

The Company may from time to time, opt to use derivative financial instruments to minimise its exposure to fluctuations in
foreign exchange and interest rates.

During the year, the Company did not enter into forward foreign exchange options to hedge the exposure of future Indian
Rupee requirements.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and these are summarised in note 22 to the
financial statements.

Directors' benefits

In the current period no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit or remuneration, other than benefits as
emoluments or a fixed salary as a full-time employee of a related body corporate and Directorship fee is paid to the
administrators for providing local directors service to the Company pursuant to the service contract entered with them. The
directors of the Company are also directors or officers of other Companies.

Going Concern
The Company has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. Management has considered a number of

factors in concluding on their going concern assessment.

The Company monitors and manages its funding position and liquidity requirements throughout the year and routinely
forecasts its future cash flows and financial position.

The company has a strong financial position. Management has considered the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in the period up to September 30, 2025 (“the going concern period™) and carried out detailed assessment.

Conclusion

Based on above assessment, Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will meet its commitments as they fall
due over the going concern period. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.



Charitable and Political Donations
The Company did not make any political or charitable contributions in UK during year ended 31% March 2024 and the year

ended 317 March 2023.

Creditors Payment Policy
It is the Company’s payment policy to ensure settlement of suppliers’ services in accordance with the terms of the applicable
contracts. In most circumstances. settlement terms are agreed prior to business taking place.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The directors of the Company who held office at 31 March 2024 confirm, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware. [n making this confirmation. the directors have taken appropriate
steps to make themselves aware of the relevant audit information and the Company’s auditors are aware of this information.

By Order of thi Board
] I/b !
( f [

Date: 20 May 2024
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors™ Report. and the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2006.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards. Under
company law. the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing those financial statements. the directors are required to:

« properly select and apply accounting policies:

« present information. including accounting policies. in a manner that provides relevant. reliable, comparable. and
understandable information:

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events, and conditions on the group and company financial position
and financial performance:

» prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the company will not
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act, 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence. for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frand and other
irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a strategic report and directors” report
that comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the website of Vedanta Limited.



Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period ended 31 March 2024

Notes Mar-24 Mar-23
$’000 $°000
Revenue 2 1,001,860 872,037
Cost of sales
Production costs 3(a) -407,438 -463,669
Depletion and decommissioning 8 -102,299 -117,565
Gross profit 492,123 290,803
Administrative expenses 3 -35,971 -19,922
Impairment reversal/ (charge) (net) 3 5,339 -38,391
Operating profit 461,491 232,490
Finance income 5 10,910 6,034
Finance costs 6(a) -17,245 -7.645
Other gains and losses 6(b) 4,780 -5,725
Profit/(loss) before taxation 459,936 225,154
Taxation 7 -200,607 -98,412
Profit/{(loss) for the year/ period 259,329 126,742
Total comprehensive income for 259,329 126,742

the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2024

Notes Mar-24 Mar'23
$°000 $°000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible exploration/appraisal assets 8 9,544 7711
Property, plant and equipment — development/producing assets 8 285,336 299,929
Deferred tax assets 7 71,370 96,723
Non-current tax assets 925 7,373
Other receivables 10 65,385 144,652
432,560 556,388
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 11 555,807 349,151
Short - term investments 12 140,480 136,504
Cash and cash equivalents 13 27 50,248
Current tax assets - 8,128
Inventory 14 44,886 43,352
Total current assets 741,210 587,383
TOTAL ASSETS 1,173,770 1,143,771
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 449,169 549,640
Current tax liabilities 132,194 -
Total current liabilities 581,363 549,640
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 16 103,831 114,996
Total non-current liabilities 103,831 114,996
TOTAL LIABILITIES 685,194 664,636
NET ASSETS 488,576 479,135
EQUITY
Called-up share capital 17 346,645 476,046
Share Premium - -
Other equity = -
Retained Earnings 141,931 3.089
TOTAL EQUITY 488,576 479,135

Financial Statements of Cairn Ehergy Hydrocarbons Limited. registration number SC172470 were approved by the Board of Directors

on 20 May 2024.

4/71%& |

Signed on behalf of the Board

Date: 20 May 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For year ended 31 March 2024

Mar-24 Mar-23
Particulars Note

$°000 $°000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 459,936 225,154
Adjustments for:
Depletion and decommissioning 8 102.299 117.565
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning liability 6(a) 4331 2.868
Interest inconie 5 -6.848 -3.956
Profit’/(Loss) on sale of Property. plant and equipment 6(b) 221 459
Dividend income 5 -4,062 -2.078
Interest expense and other finance charges 6(a) 12,914 4777
Unrealized foreign exchange (Gain) loss (net) 5,002 6,636
Impairment charge ' (reversal) ( net) 3(d) -4,997 38,391
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 568,796 389.816
(Increase) Decrease in trade and other receivables -15,630 279.758
Increase (Decrease) in trade and other payables -155.577 -1413,423
(Increase) Decrease in inventories -1,545 9476
Cash generated from operations 396,044 246,675
Income tax paid -31,687 12,987
Net cash flows from operating activities 364,357 259,662
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment — development producing . _
assets and imangl_)ibl;: exploration aci)plr)aisal assets ’ ’ ) = #9765 22
Deposits made (original maturity of more than 3 months) -60.000 -255.285
Proceeds from deposits matured 30,000 260.240
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 852,195 -
Purchase of short-term investments -833.462 42,467
Interest received 3,639 1,930
Dividend received 3 4.062 2.078
Payments made to site restoration fund -11.173 -8.,057
Net cash (used in) investing activities -160,504 -191,751




Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares
Dividend paid to parent on equity shares
Interest Paid (Received)

Net cash (used) in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 13

16,000 333326
-265.884 -348.278
-4.331 -2.867
-254,215 -17.818
-50,362 50,093
143 143
50,248 12
27 50.248

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For year ended 31 March 2024

EquityCSh?re Retained e
apital Earnings

$°000 $°000 $’000

(Note 17)

At 1 April 2022 142,720 224,625 367,345
Additions during the year 333.326 - 333,326
Reduction in Share Capital (Note 17 & 18) - -
Other equity balance transferred to retained earnings ) ) )
(distributable reserves)
Total comprehensive income for the period - 126,742 126,742
Dividend distributed during the year - -348,278 348,278
At 31 March 2023 476,046 3,089 479,135
At 1 April 2023 476,046 3,089 479,135
Additions during the year ( to CIHL) (Note 17 & 18) 16,000 - 16,000
Reduction in Share Capital (Note 17 & 18) -145.401 145,401 -
Other equity balance transferred to retained earnings ) ; )
(distributable reserves)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 259,329 259,329
Dividend distributed during the year - -265.886 -265,886
At 31 Mar 2024 346,645 141,931 488,576




Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Notes to Accounts

For year ended 31 March 2024
1.1 Accounting Policies
a) Basis of preparation

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Scotland. The registered office is located at Summit House. 4-5 Mitchell Street,
Edinburgh, EH6 7BD. Scotland. UK.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies. set out below and were consistently applied to all periods
presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except
for certain financial assets and labilities which are measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards as they apply to year ended 31 March
2024

The Company’s business activities. together with the factors likely to affect its future development. performance and position are set out in the Principal
activities and Business Review on page 2. The financial position of the Company. its cash flows. liquidity position are presented in the financial
statements and supporting notes. In addition. note 22 and 23 to the financial statements includes the Company’s objectives. policies and processes for
managing its capital: its financial risk management objectives: details of its financial instruments and hedging activities: and its exposures to credit risk
and liquidity nisk.

The Company has taken exemption under s400 of Companies Act 2006, from preparing consolidated financial statements as the results of the company
and 1ts subsidiaries are included in the consolidated results of Vedanta Resources Limited.

Going Concern

The Company has preparad the financial statements on a going concern basis. Management has considered a number of factors in concluding on their

gOiﬂg ConcCerm assessment.

The Company monitors and manages its funding position and liquidity requirements throughout the vear and routinely forecasts its future cash flows
and financial position.

The company has a strong financial position. Management has considered the Company s ability to continue as a going concern in the period up to 30
September 2025 (“'the going concern period™) and carried out detailed assessment .

Conclusion
Based on above assessment. Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will meet its commitments as they fall due over the going
concemn period. Accordingly. the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

+ expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle and

+ held primanly for the purpose of trading and

+ expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or

+ cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lability is current when:

* it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle and

» it is held primarily for the purpose of rading and

* it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

» there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are classified as non-current only.
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b)  Application of new and revised standards affecting amounts reported 1n the current period (and or prior periods)

The Company has adopted the following new amendments and pronouncements. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the amounts
reported in the financial starements.

I.Amendments to [AS 1. classification of liabilities as current or non current.

2. Amendments to IFRS 16 regarding Liabilities in a Sale and Leaseback

3. Amendment to IAS 7 and IFRS 7regarding Supplier Finance Arrangement

Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards that are issued. but not vet effective. up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are disclosed below. There

is no material impact expected from application of these standards.

Amendments to IAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability effective from 1 January 2025
New Pronouncement in IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements effective from 1 January 2027

¢} Presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is US Dollars {~$7). The Company’s policy on foreign currencies is detailed in note 1(j). The
financial statement and disclosures are presented 1n thousand dollars except where specified.

The financial Statements are rounded off to nearest $1,000.

d) Joint arrangements
A Jomt arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is considered when there is contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement. which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
The Company participates in unincorporated joint operations which involves the joint control of assets used in the Company’s oil and gas exploration
and producing activities. The Company accounts for its share of assets. liabilities. income and expenditure of the Joint Operation in which the
Company holds an interest. classified in the appropriate Statement of Financial Position and Income Statement headings. The Company’s principal
licence interests are jointly operated.
The Company has an interest in the following unincorporated Joint Operations:

Working Interest
0%

5%

wy

Block RJ-ON-90 1 exploration area
Block RJ-ON-90 1 development areas

[v%)

€} Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods' rendering of services (Revenue from contracts with customers)

Revenues from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer which usually is on delivery
of the goods to the shipping agent at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Revenue is recognised net of discounts. volume rebates. outgoing sales taxes goods and service tax and other indirect taxes excluding
excise duty. Revenues from sale of by-products are included in revenue.

Company’s sales contracts provide for provisional pricing based on the price on the crude index, as specified in the contract. Revenue in respect of such
contracts 1s recognised when control passes to the customer and is measured at the amount the entity expects to be entitled — being the estimate of the
price expected to be received at the end of the measurement period. Post transfer of control of goods. provisional pricing features are accounted in
accordance with [FRS 9 “Financial Instruments” rather than [FRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers™ and therefore the [FRS 13 rules on
variable consideration do not apply. These “provisional pricing” adjustments i.e. the consideration received post transfer of control are included in total
revenue and disclosed by way of note to the financial staterents. Final settlement of the price is based on the applicable price of the period end.
Revenue from oil, gas and condensate sales represent the Company’s share in the revenue from sale of such products, by the joint operations. and is
recognised as and when control in these products gets transferred to the customers. In computing its share of revenue. the Company excludes
government's share of profit oil which gets accounted for when the obligation in respect of the same arises.
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A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs part of its
obligation by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due. a contract asset Is
recognised for the eamed consideration when that right is conditional on Company's future performance.

A contract Hability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration trom the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payvment is
received. The advance payinents received plus a specified rate of retumn discount. at the prevailing market rates. is settled by supplyving respective goods
over a pertod of up to twenty four months under an agreed delivery schedule as per the terms of the respective agreements.

As these are contracts that the Company expects. and has the ability. to fulfil through delivery of a non-financial item. these are presented as advance
from customers and are recognised as revenue as and when control of respective commodities is transferred to customers under the agreements. The
fixed rate of return discount is treated as finance cost. The portion of the advance where either the Company does not have a unilateral right to defer
settlement beyond 12 months or expects settiement within 12 months from the balance sheet date is classified as a current liability.

Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence. the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Tolling income

Tolling income represents Company’s share of revenues from Pilotage and Oil Transfer Services from the respective joint ventures. which is recognized
based on the rates agreed with the customers, as and when the services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the
eftective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example.
prepayment, extension. call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised in the income statement only when the right to receive payment is established. provided it is probable that the economic
benetits associated with the dividend will flow to the company. and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

f) Property. plant and equipment

1) Oil and gas assets —(developing producing assets)
The Company follows a successful efforts-based accounting policy for oil and gas assets. Costs incurred prior to obtaining the legal rights to explore an
area are ¢xpensed immediately to the Income Statement. All costs incurred after the technical feasibility and commercial viability of producing
hydrocarbons has been demonstrated are capitalised within property. plant and equipment - development producing assets on a field-by-field basis.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only where it either enhances the economic benefits of the development producing asset or replaces part of the
existing development producing asset. Any remaining costs associated with the part replaced are expensed. The cost of such quantity of crude oil
inventory which is expected to be lying in the pipeline during the entire life of the pipeline (initial fill) is capitalised within the development assets.

Net proceads from any disposal of development producing assets are credited against the previously capitalised cost. A gain or loss on disposal of a
development producing asset is recognised int the income statement to the extent that the net proceeds exceed or are less than the appropriate portion of
the net capitalised costs of the asset.

it) Exploration and evaluation assets
Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred prior to obtaining the legal right to explore are expensed as incurred. Expenditure incurred on the
acquisition of a licence interest is initially capitalised on a licence-by-licence basis. Costs are held. are not amortised or depreciated. within
exploration appraisal assets until such time as the exploration phase on the licence area is complete or commercial reserves have been discovered.

Exploration expenditure incurred in the process of determining exploration targets is capitalised initially within exploration appraisal assets and
subsequently allocated to drilling activities. Exploration appraisal drilling costs are initially capitalised on a well-by-well basis until the success or
otherwise of the well has been established. The success or failure of each exploration appraisal effort is judged on a well-by-well basis.

Driiling costs are written off on completion of a well unless the results indicate that hvdrocarbon reserves exist and there is a reasonable prospect that
these reserves are commercial.
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Following appraisal of successtul exploration wells. if commercial reserves are established and technical feasibility for extraction demonstrated. then
the related capitalised exploration appraisal costs are transferred into a single tield cost cenire within development producing assets after testing for
impairment. Where results of exploration drilling indicate the presence of hydrocarbons that are ultimately not considered commercially viable, all
related costs are written off to the Income Statement.

Exploration & evaluation assets are subject to technical. commercial and management review, as well as review for indicators of impairment at least
once a year and impairment loss. if any. is charged to Income statement

Net proceeds from any disposal of an exploration asset are initially credited against the previously capitalised costs. Any surplus  deficit is recognized
in the Income Statement,

1i1) Depletion

The Company depletes separately. where applicable. any significant components within development producing assets. such as fields. processing
facilities and pipelines. which are significant in relation to the total cost of a development producing asset.

The Company depletes expenditure on property. plant & equipment - development producing assets on a unit of production basis. which is the ratio of
oil and gas production in the period to the estimated quantities of commercial reserves at the end of the period plus the production in the period,
generally on a field —by-field basis or group of fields which are reliant on common infrastructure.

Commercial reserves are proven and probable oil and gas reserves, which are defined as the estimated quantities of crude oil. natural gas and natural
gas liquids which geological, geophysical and engineering data demonstrate with a specified degree of certainty to be recoverable in future years from
known reservoirs and which are considered commercially producible. There should be a 30 per cent statistical probability that the actual quantity of
recoverable reserves will be more than the amount estimated as proven and probable reserves and a 50 per cent statistical probability that it will be less.

Costs used in the unit of production calculation comprise the net book value of capitalised costs plus the estimated future field development costs
required to access commercial reserves. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are dealt with prospectively.

1v) Assets under construction
Assets under construction are capitalised in the assets under construction account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property. plant and equipment. Costs associated with the
commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised until the period of commissioning has been completed and the
asset is ready for its intended use.

g) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
(a) Financial Assets —Initial Recognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value with the exception of trade receivables recorded under IFRS 15 which are initially measured at
transaction price. plusin the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are atiributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as below based on the business model to which they relate. in accordance with
IFRS 9:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows. and

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the income statement.
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Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as
FVOCL is classified as at F\'TPL.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of IFRS 9 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments which are classified as
FVTPL. all subsequent fair value changes are recognised in the income statement.

(b) Financial Asset - Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset expire. or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred.

(¢) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company applies expected credit loss ("ECL"™) model for measurement and recognition of impainment loss on the
following financial assets:

i) Financial assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities and deposits

i1) Trade recervables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of [FRS 15.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. contract assets and lease receivables.
The application of simplitied approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date. for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly. 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss.

However, 1if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used. If. in a subsequent period. credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based
on 12-month ECL.

ECL 15 the difference between all contractual cash tlows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive. discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognised as income expense
in profit or loss. The statement of financial position presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

i} Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance. i.e.. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit impaired {POCD financial assets. i.e.. financial assets which are credit impaired on
purchase origination. -

(d) Financial liabilities —- Initial recognition & Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. or as loans and borrowings. payables.
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

and m the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’'s financial liabilities include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial guaraniee contracts.



Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Notes to Accounts

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classitication. as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial labilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on Habilities held for trading are recognised in the income statement. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost {Loans and Borrowings and Trade and Other payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the income statement.

(e) Financial liabilities — Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiliry is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

() Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs.

(g) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

h) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception. all arrangements to determine whether they are. or contain. a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains lease. the Company separates pavinents and other consideration required by the
arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities towards future lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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i) Right to use assets ('ROU™)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date when the underlying asset is available for use}. Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. initial direct costs incurred. and lease payments mads at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Right-of-use assets are also depleted on a unit of production basis similar to other Oil & Gas assets (Refer 1(f)).

i1) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (and. in some instances. in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
it the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease pavments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the pavment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pavments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is generally not readily determinable and such rate is evenly charged throughout the lease term. After the
commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition.
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification. a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset. The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Other Financial Liabilities.

111} Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment {i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low value assets recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that are low value . Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

i) Inventories

Inventory of o1l is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value based on the estimated selling price. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis.

Inventories of stores and spares related to production activities are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower on a first-in. first-out
(“FIFO™) basis.

Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

j) Foreign currencies

The functional currency for entity is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. The Company translates
foreign currency transactions into the tunctional currency. USD. ai the rate of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. All
Exchange differences arising are included in the Income Statement except for those incurred on borrowings specifically allocable to development
projects. which are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
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Non — monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are iranslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value 15
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss. respectively.)

Rates of exchange to S were as follows:

Currency Asat 31 March 2024 Average year ended March 2024
Indian Rupee 83.3416 82.7843
Currency As at 31 March 2023 Average year ended March 2023
Indian Rupee 82.1643 80.2724

k) Investments

The Company’'s investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provisions resulting from impairment. The recoverable value of investments is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Discounted future net cash flows for IAS 36 purposes are calculated using a consensus short and long-term oil price forecast and the appropriate gas
price as dictated by the relevant gas sales contract. escalation for costs of and a post-tax discount rate. Forecast production profiles are determined on
an asset by asset basis. using appropriate petroleum engineering techniques.

1) Impairment
Non-financial assets

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units. A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. For purpose of impairment testing
Company has identified CGU at PSC level as it is the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows and are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or group of assets.
If any such indication exists where annual testing of impairment is required then an impairment review is undertaken. the recoverable amount is
calculated. as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and the asset’s value in use.
The Company assesses at each reporting date. whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. The Company conducts an internal review
of asset values annually. which is used as a source of information to assess for any indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognised
impairment losses. Internal and external factors. such as worse economic performance than expected. changes in expected future prices, costs and other
market factors are also monitored to assess for indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment losses.
Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants and does not
reflect the effects of factors that may be specific to the entity and not applicable to entities in general. Fair value for oil and gas assets is generally
etermined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, including any expansion
prospects. and its eventual disposal. using assumptions that an independent market participant may take into account. These cash flows are discounted
at an appropriate post-tax discount rate to arrive at the net present value.
Value in use is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present
form and its eventual disposal. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
mongy and the risks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use is detenmined by applying
assumptions specific to the Company’s continued use and cannot take into account future development. These assumptions are different to those used
in calculating fair value and consequently the value in use calculation is likely to give a different result to a fair value calculation.
The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the CGU is detenmined. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU i1s estimated to be less than its carrving amount. the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.
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m) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of cwrent tax and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current tax is provided ar amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided. using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Exceptions to this principle are:

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. associates and interests in joint arrangements where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future:

» When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and. at the time of the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss:

* Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. the carrv forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. except

a. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. associates and interested in joint arrangements. deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

b. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liabilitv in a transaction
that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) are reviewed at each balance sheet date and is adjusted to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re- assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.
based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside protit or loss is recognised either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset. if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority and the Company intends either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis. or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanzously. in each period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

n} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above. net of outstanding
bank overdrafts.

o) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs. allocated between share capital and share
premium.
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p) Bormrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which theyv are incurred.

Capitalisation of interest on borrowings related to construction or development projects is ceased when substantially all the activities that are necessary
to make the assets ready for their intended use are complete or when delays occur outside the normal course.

q) Restoration. rehabilitation and environmental costs

An obligation to incur restoration. rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance is caused by the development or
ongoing production of oil fields. Costs arising from the decommissioning of plant and other site preparation work are provided for based on their
discounted net present value, with a corresponding amount being capitalised at the start of each project.

The Company recognises the full discounted cost of dismaniling and decommissioning as an asset and liability when the obligation arises. The
decommissioning asset is included within property. plant & equipment development producing assets with the cost of the related installation. The
liability is included within provisions. The amount provided for is recognised. as soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. These costs are
charged to the income statement over the life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the provision.
The cost estimates are reviewed periodically and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have an impact on the cost estimates or life of
operations.

The cost of the related asset 1s adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated cost estimates. new disturbance and revisions to
discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively over the lives of the assets to which thev relate. The unwinding of the discount
is shown as a finance cost in the income statement.

Costs for restoration of subsequent site damage which is caused on an ongoing basis during production are provided for at their net present value and
charged to the income statement as extraction progresses. Where the costs of site restoration are not aniicipated to be significant, they are expensed as
mcurred.

Site Restoration Deposits pertaining to above liabilities are accounted for in conformity with IFRIC 3.

r) Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive). as a result of past events. and it is probable that an outflow
of resources. that can be reliably estimated. will be required to settle such an obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to the net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and. where appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the
income statement as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

s) Buyers® credit suppliers” credit

The Company enters into arrangements whereby financial institutions make direct payments to suppliers for raw materials. The financial institutions are
subsequently repaid by the company at a later date providing working capital timing benefits. These are normally settled up to twelve months.
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t) Crtical accounting judgement and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements. estimates and assumptions that atfect the
reported amounts of assets. liabilities. mcome. expenses and the accompanying disclosures and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Significant estimates
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The Company considers the following areas as the key sources of estimation
uncertainty:

1. Oil & Gas reserves

Significant technical and commercial judgements are required to determine the Company's estimated oil and natural gas reserves. Oil & Gas reserves
are estimated on a proved and probable entitlement interest basis. Proven and probable reserves are estimated using standard recognised evaluation
techniques.

The estimate is reviewed annually. Future development costs are estimated taking into account the level of development required to produce the reserves
by reference to operators. where applicable, and internal engineers. Net entitlement reserves estimates are subsequently calculated using the Company's
current oil price and cost recovery assumptions. in line with the relevant agreements. Changes in reserves as a result of factors such as production cost,
recovery rates. grade of reserves or oil and gas prices could impact the depletion rates. carrying value of assets (refer note 8 & note 3(e)) and
environmental and restoration provisions.

ii. PSC Extension

On October 26. 2018, the Government of India (Gol). acting through the Directorate General of Hydrocarbons (DGH) granted its approval for a ten-
vear extension of the Production Sharing Coentract (PSC) for the Rajasthan Block (RJ). with effect from May 15. 2020 subject to certain conditions and
pay additional 10°. profit petroleum. Pending the outcome of arbitration and petition filed with Supreme court on applicability of policv. MoPNG vide
letter dated October 21. 2022 has conveved the grant of approval of extension of PSC tor 10 years from 135 May 2020 to 14 May 2030 and the PSC
addendum has been executed by the parties on October 27, 2022,

The Government of India ("Gol"), acting through the Directorate General of Hydrocarbons ("DGH"). had raised demand up to 14 May 2020 for
Government's additional share of Profit Oil. based on its computation of disallowance of cost incurred over retrospective re-allocation of certain
common costs between Development Areas (DAs) of Rajasthan Block and certain other matters aggregating to USS 1.162 million and applicable
interest thereon representing share of Vedanta Limited and its subsidiary.

The Company had disputed the aforesaid demand and invoked arbitration as per the provisions of the Production Sharing Centract. The Company had
received the Final Partial Award dated 22 August 2023 from the Arbitration Tribunal (“the Tribunal') as amended by order dated 15 November. 2023
and 08 December 2023 (“the Award”) . dismissing the Government's contention of additional Profit Petroleum 1n relation to allocation of common
development costs across Development Areas and certain other matters in accordance with terms of the Production Sharing Contract for Rajasthan
Block. while disallowing some matters. Further. the Tribunal had decided that the Group was allowed to claim cost recovery of exploration cost for the
purpose of computation of Profit Oil.

Pursuant to the Award. the Company had recognized a benefit of USS 289 million in revenue from operations.

Gol had sought an additional award or interpretation clarification on certain matters decided by the Tribunal under the Indian Arbitration and
Conciliation Act. 1996 ("the Act”) (“Gol Application™). The Tribunal vide its order dated 15 November 2023 and 08 December 2023 has dismissed
GOI's interpretation and additional award applications in favour of the Company.

The Company has adjusted the liability during the current year of USS [16 million against the aforesaid benefits recognized as per the Award.

GOI had filed interim relief application on 03 February 2024 staiing that the Company has unilaterally enforced the award although the quantification
of the same is pending. The matter was heard on 26 March 2024 and the Tribunal vide its order dated 30 April 2024 has dismissed GOI's interim relief
application in favour of the Company.

GOI also had filed an appeal on 07 March 2024 against the Award in Delhi High Court and the matter was heard on 14 March 2024. No stay was
granted and petition was not admitted. Next date of hearing is 21 May, 2024,

The Company is of the view that there is no merit in the challenge filed by GOL. as the Court cannot re-appreciate the evidence in Section 34 appeal as
the interpretation by the Tribunal is plausible

In the interim. vide letter dated 06 May 2024. GOI has submitted its calculation of the quantum basis the Award. GOI has claimed a sum of USS 224
million frem the Group.

The Company is of the view that it is in contrary to the Award and clarification issued by the Tribunal in the GOI's reconsideration application. Further
the Company is evaluating the computation of quantum and is confident that it can defend against the quantum raised by GOI
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1i1. Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs

Provision 1s made for costs associated with restoration and rehabilitation of o1l sites as soon as the obligation 1o incur such costs arises and a
corresponding amount is capitalised at the start of each project. Such restoration and closure costs are typical of oil and gas indusiries and they are
normally incurred at the end of the life of the oil fields. The provision for decommissioning of oil and gas assets is based on the current estimate of the
costs for removing and decommissioning producing facilities. the forecast timing and currency of settlement of decommissioning liabilities and the
appropriate discount rate.

The capitalised asset is charged to the income statement through the depreciation over the life of operation of the asset and the provision is increased
each period via unwinding the discount on the provision. Management estimates are based on local legislation and or other agreements. The actual costs
and cash outflows mayv differ from estimates because of changes in laws and regulations. changes in prices. analysis of site conditions and changes in
restoration technology. Details of such provision are set out in note 16.

iv. Recoverability of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the extent there are sufficient taxable temporary differences. This involves an assessment of when those
assets are likely to reverse. and a judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient taxable profits available to offset the assets. This requires
assumptions regarding future profitability. which is inherently uncertain. To the extent assumptions regarding future profitability change. there can be
an increase or decrease in the amounts recognised in respect of deferred tax assets and consequential impact in the income statement.

u. Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business. contingent liabilities may arise from litigation. taxation and other claims against the Company. A provision is
recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that
obligation.

Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

When considering the classification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there is a judgement involved. This pertains to the application
of the legislation. which in certain cases is based upon management’s interpretation of laws of the land and the likelihood of settlement. Management
uses in-house and external legal professionals to make informed decision. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
proceedings. the company doesn’t expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the financial position or profitability. These are set out in note 20.
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Year ended Mar

Year ended Mar

2024 2023
S'600 $*000
Sale of products
Revenue trom sale of oil and gas 1.001.412 §71.230
Sale of services 448 807
Revenue from contract with customers 1,001,860 872,037

Disaggregation of revenue

Year ended Mar

Year ended Mar

2024 2023

$'000 S*000
Sale of products
Oil 8417.607 714.153
Gas 153.803 157.077
Sale of products 1.001.412 §71.230
Sale of services 448 807
Total revenue 1,001,860 872,037

a) Revenue from operations includes revenue from contract with customers of $ 1.001.860 million ( March 2023:S 872.037
million) of which S 1001.412 million {March 23: S 871.23 million) is recognised at a point in time and $ 0.448 million ( March
2022:S 0.807 million) is recognised over a period of time.

3 Operating Profit

a) Operating Profit is stated after charging :

Year ended Mar Year ended Mar

2024 2023

$'000 $*000

Cess Windfall tax on crude oil 206.720 250.328
(Increase) in inventory of crude oil 93 -1.574
Other production costs 200.625 214915
Production costs 407,438 463,669
Depletion and decommissioning 102.299 117.565
Administrative Expenses 35971 19.922

Impairment charge (reversal) net -3.339 38.391
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b) Continuing operations

All profits in the current and preceding vear were derived from continuing operations.
¢) Auditors’ Remuneration

Fees amounting to S 27.135 (the year ended 31 March 2023: S 34.500) is pavable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the
Company s annual accounts for the year 2023-24.

The Company has a system in place for the award of non-audit work to the auditors. Additionally, no Non Audit Services has
been taken from the auditor during the year ended 3 1st Mar 2024,

d) Impairment Reversal/ (Charge) Net

Year ended March Year ended March

2024 2023
$°000 S*000
[mpairment reversal (Charge)* 5,168 -36.832
Unsuccessful Exploration cost written off** -171 -1.339
Total 4.997 -38,391

During the vear, the Company had recognized a net impairment reversal of USD 5 mn on its assets in the oil and gas exploration
intangible assets under development pursuant to Final partial arbitration award . The recoverable amount of the Company’s share
in Rajasthan Oil and Gas cash generating unit “RJ CGU™ was determined to be US S 632 million as at 30 September 2023. The
recoverable amount of the RJ CGU was determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal approach. a level-3 valuation
technique in the fair value hierarchy. as it more accurately reflects the recoverable amount based on the Company’s view of the
assumptions that would be used by a market participant. This is based on the cash flows expected to be generated by the
projected oil and natural gas production profiles up to 2040, the expected dates of cessation of production sharing contract
(PSC) cessation of production from each producing field based on the current estimates of reserves and risked resources.
Reserves assumptions for fair value less costs of disposal tests consider all reserves that a market participant would consider
when valuing the asset. which are usually broader in scope than the reserves used in a value-in-use test. Discounted cash flow
analysis used to calculate fair value less costs of disposal uses assumption for short-term oil price of US S 79 per barrel for the
next one year and tapers down to long-term nominal price of US § 74 per barrel three years thereafter derived from a consensus
of various analyst recommendations. Thereafter. these have been escalated at a rate of 2.4%, per annum. The cash flows are
discounted using the post-tax nominal discount rate of 11.32% derived from the posi-tax weighted average cost of capital after
factoring in the risks ascribed to PSC extension including successful implementation of key growth projects. Based on the
sensitivities carried out by the Company, change in crude price assumptions by US S 1 bbl and changes to discount rate by 1%
would lead to a change in recoverable value by US S 3 million and US $ 26 million respectively.

4 Directors’ Emoluments

Being in non-executive position no directors were entitled to any remuneration from the Company. Professional fee paid to the
consultants for their directorship services to the Company amounted to S 38.019 vear ended 31 March 2024 (the year ended 31
March 2023: S 15.571).

Average number of persons employed by the company is Nil ( March 2023: Nil) excluding directors.
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5 Finance Income

Year ended Mar

Year ended Mar

2024 2023

$°000 S'000

Bank deposit interest 3.703 1.532
Income from SRF deposit 3.145 2424
Dividend income 4.062 2.078
10.910 6,034

6(a) Finance Costs

Year ended Mar

Year ended Mar

2024 2023
$°000 $'000
Interest expense 4838 967
Other finance charges 8.076 3.810
Sub Total 12,914 4,777
Other finance charges - unwinding of discount (note 16) 4.331 2.868
Total 17,245 7,645

6(b) Other gains and losses

Year ended Mar

Year ended Mar

2024 2023
$7000 $*0060
Protit (Loss) on sale of Property, plant and equipment 2221 -459
Exchange gain (loss) (net)* 3,001 -3.266
Total 4,780 -5,725
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7 Taxation on Profit
a) Analysis of tax charge during the vear

Year ended Year ended
March 2024 March 2023

$°000 $°000
Current tax on profit for the year 170,847 39.830
Current tax charge in respect of earlier vears 3.23 -102
Total current tax (a) 174,085 39,748
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 28.697 78.755
Deferred Tax - Special ltems 2257 -18.749
Charge in respect of deferred tax for earlier vears -4.432 -1.343
Total deferred tax (b) 26,522 58,664
Total tax charge ({(a)+(b)) 200,607 98,412

b) Factors affecting tax charge for year

A reconctliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the applicable tax rate to tax expense at the Company’s effective tax
rate s as follows:

Year ended Year ended

March 2024 March 2023

$'000 S°000

Profit before taxation 459.936 225,134

Corporation tax at the standard UK rate of 23%, 114,984 42.779
Effects of:

Permanent differences™ 2400 2.097

Effect of higher tax rate** 84417 54981

Tax charge relating to earlier years -1,194 -1.445

Total tax charge 200,607 98,412

Effective tax rate 43.62% 43.71%

* this majorly pertains to foreign exchange movement impact of conversion of INR tax assets to USD.

**Profits from Indian branch of the Company is subject to Indian statutory tax rate of 43.6% (March 2023: 43.7%).

The Company has elected for branch exemption and the same has been accepted by HM Revenue and Customs and the year ended 31 March
2016 was the first period for which the foreign branch exemption applied to the Company. This exemption has the effect of exempting from
UK Corporation tax all profits and losses attributable to the operations of the Indian branch of the Company.

The Company has accrued significant amounts of deferred tax. The majority of the deferred tax represents accelerated tax relief for the
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and net of unused tax credits in the form of Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credits carried
forward under Indian tax laws. Significant components of Deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the statement of financial
position are as follows:



For yvear ended March 2024
Significant components of Deferred
Tax assets & {liabilities)

Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited

Notes to Accounts

Opening (Charged)/credited
balance as at to statement of

Exchange
difference on

Closing balance
as at Mar 31,

April 1, 2023 profit or loss  translation of 2024
foreign
operation
$'000 $000 $°000 $'000
Property. Plant and Equipment,
Exploration and evaluation and 67478 -5.559 1,347 37572
intangible exploration appraisal assets
MAT credit entitlement 16.480 -21.997 5.517 -
Other Temporary Differences 12.765 1.033 - 13.798
Total 96,723 -26,523 1,170 71,370
For year ended March 2023
Significant components of Deferred Opening (Charged)/credited Exchange Closing balance

Tax assets & (liabilities)

balance as at to statement of

difference on

as at Mar 31,

April 1, 2022 profit or loss  translation of 2023
foreign
operation
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
Property. Plant and Equipment.
Exploration and evaluation and 67.382 -3.268 3.163 67478
intangible exploration appraisal assets
MAT credit entitlement 83,417 -34.473 -12.463 16,480
Other Temporary Difterences 11.686 1.079 - 12,765
Total 162,685 -58.664 -7.298 96,723
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8 Property, plant and equipment, Intangible exploration/appraisal assets

Intangible

Oil and gas Sub Total Oil and -
exploration/ Total

Particulars f 5
properties Gas Properties

appraisal assets

$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Gross Block
Asat 1 April 2022 3,035,092 3,035,092 21,671 3,056,763
Additions 108.646 108,646 35.581 144.227
Disposals Adjustments -79.361 -79,361 - -79.361
Transfers - - - -
Unsuccessful Exploration cost - - -1.559 -1.559
Asat 31 March 2023 3,064,376 3,064,376 55,692 3,120,069
Additions 102,883 102,883 - 102,883
Disposals Adjustments -16.012 -16.012 -3.214 -19,226
Transfers 2.287 2.287 -2.287 -
Unsuccessful Exploration cost - - 171 171
Asat 31 March 2024 3,153,534 3,153,534 50,362 3,203,897
Accumulated depreciation and depletion
Asat 1 April 2022 2,648,696 2,648,696 11,149 2,659,845
Disposals Adjustments -1.812 -1.812 - -1,812
Charge for the year 117.565 117.565 - 117.565
Impairment - - - -
Impairment Reversal (Charge) - - 36.832 36,832
As at 31 March 2023 2,764,449 2,764,449 47,981 2,812,430
Disposals Adjustments -544 =544 - -544
Charge for the year 102,298 102,298 - 102,298
Reclassification (Impairment) 1.995 1.995 -1,995 -
Impairment Reversal (Charge) - - -5.168 -5.168
As at 31 March 2024 2,868,198 2,868,198 40,818 2.909,017
Net book value
As at 31 March 2023 299,927 299,927 7,711 307,640
As at 31 March 2024 285,336 285,336 9,544 294,880

Oil and Gas Properties includes development assets under construction of carrving value $ 110 million (31 March
2023 § 123 million).

°. Oil & Gas properties and exploration and evaluation assets net block represents share of jointlv owned assets with the

Joint venture partners including the parent company Vedanta Limited.
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9 Investments in Subsidiaries

S$*000
Cost and net book value:
At 1 April 2022 =
Additions -
Impairment of investment -
Return of Equity 5
At 1 April 2023 -
Additions -

Impairment of investment -

Return of Equity -
At 31 March 2024 -

The investment has been made in the following subsidiaries-
Name of subsidiary Mar'24 Mar’23

Caim Lanka Pvt Limited*® - N

*Caim Lanka Pvt Limited is under liquidation

Details of the primary investments in which the Company held 20°0 or more of the nominal value of any class of share capitai are as follows:
Company Country of Registered Office Proportion of voting rights Nature of Business
incorporation and ordinary shares

Direct Holdings

Cairn Mauritius Holding Limited* Mauritius 6th floor. Tower A .1 160°0 Holding company
Cybercity Ebene Republic
of Mauritius

Caim Lanka Pvt Limited Sri Lanka Lanka Shipping Tower 100° 5 Exploration & production
N0.99. St. Michael Road.
Colombo 3. Sri Lanka

Indirect Holding

Cairn Mauritius Pyt Linuted® Mauritius 6th floor. Tower A .] 100% Holding company
Cybercity Ebene Republic
of Mauritius

* Dissolved effective from March 1. 2023

10 Other receivables

Mar'24 Mar23
37000 s'000
Unsecured & considered good
Site restoration deposits with banks 356.786 43,613
Claims and other receivables - 80317
Unsecured & considered doubtful
Claims and other receivables - 14.237
Less: Provision for expected credit loss - -14.237
Financial (A) 56,786 135,930
Balance with government authorities = 8.599 8.722
Non-Financial (B) 8.599 8.722

Total (A) + (B) 65,385 144,652




Cairn Energy Hydrocarbons Limited
Notes to Accounts

3.8 million), beirg Company share of gross amouni of § 11.4 million paid under protest on account of Education
2013-14 irefer note 20)

al  Includes § 3.8 million (31 March 2023: S
cess and Secondary Higher Education Cess for

b) Includes S 4.3 million (31 March 2023: S 4.3 million). paid under protest on account of Entry Tax (refer note 20)

11 Trade and Other Receivables

Mar'24 Mar23
$°000 $°000
Unsecured, Considered good
Trade receivables 10.301 61351
Joint Operations receivable 243.632 260,673
Claims and other receivables*® 270,372 -
Unsecured, Considered doubtful
Joint Operations receivable 19.119 3406
Less: Provision for expected credit loss -19.119 -3.406
Financial (A) 554,305 325,027
Unsecured, Considered good
Amount receivable from Group Company - 15444
Joint Operations receivable®** 1.502 8.680
Non — Financial (B) 1.502 24,124
Total (A) + (B) 555,807 349.151

**Includes prepayments of S 1.92 million (31 March 2023: S 1.63 million)

* Government of India (Gol} vide Oifice Memorandum (~OM”) No. 0-19023 10 2003-ONG-DV dated 01 February 2013 allowed for Exploration in the Mining
Lease Area after expiry of Exploration period and prescnbed the mechanism for recovery of such Exploration Cost incurred. Vide another Memorandum dated
24 October 2019. Gol clarified that all approved Exploration costs incurred on Exploration activities. both successful and unsuccessful. are recoverable in the
manner as prescribed in the OM and as per the provisions of PSC. Accordingly. the Company has started recognizing revenue. for past exploration costs.
through increased share in the joint operations revenue as the Company believes that cost recovery mechanism prescribed under OM for profit petroleum
pavable to Gol is not applicable to its Joint operation partner. . During the year. the Arbitration Tribunal has issued Final Partial Award which allowed for
recovery of exploration costs. Accordingly The Company has recognized additional USS 29 million a view which is also supported by GOI partial arbitration
award. At year end. an amount of USS 134 million (31 March 2023: USS 103 million} is receivable from its joint operation partner on account of this. The
Company is actively engaging with Joint operation partner and the same will be recovered through revenue in due course. This amount has been reclassified
from Non Current (refer Note 10) to Current.

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables (Financial). is set out below:

Mar'24 Mar'23
$°000 S000
Neither past due nor impaired 268,426 301.027
Past due but not impaired
Less than 1 month = -
Between 1-3 months - =
Between 3-12 months 180.052 -
Greater than 12 months 105.817 24.000
Total 554,305 325,027
The movement in allowance for doubtiul debts individually or collectively impaired is as set out below.
Mar'24 Mar'23
$°000 $°000
Joint operation trade receivables
Opening balance 3.406 19.550
Movement during the period
- Reclass from Non Current 14.237 =
- Movement 1476 -16.144
Closing balance 19,119 3.1406

Included in the provision for expected credit loss are individually impaired Joint operation trade receivables with a balance of § 19.119 million (31 March
2023:8 3.406 million). These predominantly relate 1o outstanding Rajasthan cash calls from joint venture partner. Oil and Natural Gas Corporation {ONGC)
which 1s currently being pursued by the management.
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12 Short — Term Investments

Mar'24 Mar'23

s6oo $7000

Bank Deposits 61.097 30.263
Mutual funds 79.383 86.239
Total 140,480 136,504

Bank deposits are made for varying periods depending on the cash requirements of the Company and interest is earned at respective fixed deposit rates.

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Mar'24 Mar'23

$*000 S o000

Cash at bank 2F 30.248
Total 27 50.248

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits are made for varying periods from overnight deposits to three
months depending on the cash requirements of the Company.

14 Inventories

Mar'24 Mar'23

§°000 5000

O1l inventories™ 9.333 9.646
Stores and spares 35343 33.706
Total 44.896 43.352

* As on 31st March 2024 the inventory of finished goods is valued at cost. having total cost of 5 9.333 million & Net Realisable Value of § 11.8 million.

* As on 31st March 2023 the inventory of finished goods is valued at cost. having total cost of S 9.646 million & Net Realisable Value of S 11.% million.

15 Trade and Other Payables

Mar'24 Mar'23
$°000 $°000
Joint operation liabilites 264744 377914
Amounts owed to group companies 7493 109
Profit petroleum payable 132384 124187
Dues 1o Joint Venture Partner 18.395 17.493
Operational buvers” credir suppliers” credit 6,428 19.835
Other liabilities 180 P14
Financial (A) 429.624 539,652
Statutory Labilites 11.419 10,053
Other liabilities 8.126 - 63
Non-Financial (B) 19,545 9.988
Total (A) + (B) 449.169 549.640

Operational buyers™ credit supplters’ credit are interest-bearing liabilities and are normally setiled within a period of twelve months. These represent
arrangements whereby operational suppliers of raw muaterials are patd by financial instinutions. with the Company recognising the lability for sentlement with
the institutions at a later date.
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16 Provisions
Provision for decommissioning — Non current

$'000

At 31 March 2022 127,803
Change in decommissioning estimate -13.673
Unwinding for the year 2.868
At 31 March 2023 114.996
Change in decommissioning estimate -15.496
Unwinding for the year 4331
At 31 March 2024 103.831

Decommissioning costs are expected to be incurred during 204! being the field life of Rajasthan oil and gas field. The provision has been estimated using
existing technology at current prices which are escalated using an inflation rate of 2%e p.a. (2023: 1.9%¢ .p.a.) and discounted using a real discount rate of 1.43°
p-a. {2023: 3.92%0 p.a ). These estimates are reviewed regularly to take into account any material changes to the assumptions. However. actual decommissioning
costs will ultimately depend upon future market prices for the necessary decommissioning works required that will reflect market conditions at the relevant ume.
Furthermore. the timing of decommissioning is likely to depend on when the fields cease to produce at economically viable rates. This. in wm. will depend

[

upon future oil and gas prices. which are inherently uncertain.

17 Share Capital
Authorised ordinary shares
Special Resolution was passed on 22 October 2009, whereby limit on the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was removed.

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23

£1 Ordinary Amount £1 Ordinary Amount

Number $°000 Number $°000

Ordinary £1 shares 279.425379 346.645 385.542.389 476.046
279.425.379 346.645 385.542.389 476.046

Rights and obligations attaching to the shares
The rights and obligations attaching to the ordinary shares are set ouf in the Articles.
Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote ar general meetings of the Company and is entitled to dividends.

18 During vear ended 31 March 2024 .the Company Issued 12.892.828 erdinary shares equivalent to USD 16.000.000.to 1ts parent company. Caim India Holdings
Limited. Also the company passed special resolution to reduce its share capital balance by cancelling and extinguishing 119.009.838 ordinary shares.

19 Capital Commitments

Mar'24 Mar®23
$°000 $'000

Oil and gas commitmeats:
Property. plant and equipment — development activities 63.370 76.900
— exploration activities RS 3.599
Contracted for 63.615 80.499

The above capital commitments represent the Company’s share of obligations in relation to its interests in joint operations. As the joint operation in which the
Company participates involves joint control of assets. these commitments also represent the Company’s share of the capital commiuments of the joint operation
itself.
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20 Contingent Liabilities

Service tax — import of service

Vedanta Limited (erstwhile Caim India limited) being the Operator of RJ-ON-90 1 block in which Company has participating mterest. had received eleven show
cause notices (SCN’s) related to penod April 1. 2006 to Tune 30. 2017. citing non-pavment of service tax on various services. All SCN's have been adjudicated by
the department and company has filed an appeal with respect to all the SCN's.

Out of the total service tax demanded by the Service tax authorities. S 4.6 million {31 March 2023: S 4.6 million) belongs to RJ-ON-90 1 block. and out of which
Company’s share will be S 1.2 million (31 March 2023: $1.2 million).

Further. during the previous year. 6 SCNs our of above has been closed pursuant to the Sabka Vishwas {Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme) (SVLDRS) notified by
the CBIC for the setilement of the pending tax litigations. Under this scheme. 6 applications were filed by the operator of the RJ Block for settlement of cases
referred above and accordingly the pavment was made for tax dues thus resulting in reduction of exposure on account of service Tax cases.

Thus. the net demand alleged w.r.t balance 5 SCNs for RJ Block is S 1.6 million and the company's share is $0.6m. Consequently. the aet contingent liability is §
0.3 million after considering proviston created in books for S 0.03 million.

Service tax — MGA

The operator had received a SCN dated September 16. 2019 issued by Directorate General of Goods & Service Tax Intelligence (DGGST) alleging demand of $ 52.7
million { Company share $ 18.5 million) on account of short pavment of service tax on Manpower & General Admunistrative Overhead Costs (MGA Costs) for the
peried Apni 2014 to June 2017 plus applicable interest & penalty. The possible liability being estimated by the management on account of ahove notice for the
period Apr 16 to Jun 17 is S 6.6 million. Demand periaining to earlier period has not been stated as contingent lizbility due to limitation prescribed under the Service
Tax Law. The matzer was virtually heard on 28.01.2022,

Vide lener dated 06.04.2022 tissued by the office of the Principal Commissicner of CGST and Central Excise. Chernai) the adjudication of SCN in the MGA matter
has been kept in abeyance and transferred to call book for time being since there are various conflicting decisions and department filed appeal in vanious forums on
similar issue

Entry Tax

Pursuant to the provisions of the Rajasthan Enwry Tax Act. 1999. an entry tax demand has been raised for S 4.3 million (31 March 2023: S 4.3 million) plus potential
mterest of § 0.8 million for the period 2002 to 2018. The Supreme Court has upheld the constitutionally validity of Entry tax disregarding compensators theory.
however. grounds of "discrimination” and coverage of entire state under "Local Area’ has been remanded back to High Courts for adjudication. We have filed the
writ before Rajasthan High court in Entry tax matter on the grounds of “discrimination’ and coverage of entire state under "local area’ and appeal is under dus
course. Depariment has filed a counter affidavii in September 2017. The Company based on the legal advice believes that its position is likely to be upheld and has
disclosed the same as contingent liability.

Earhy hearing applicarion filed in Rajasthan HC and the matter is listed for hearing in due course.

Qil cess

Rajasthan High Court vide its orders dated 19th Oct’ 2016 and 13th Jan™ 2017 in the case of Vedan:a Lid erstwhile Caim India Lunited (Operator of RJ ON-90 [
block). held that Education cess ("E cess’) and Secondary Higher Education Cess ("SHE cess™) is pavable on O1 Cess. The total amount shown as refundable for the
period April’13 to Nov'13 is § 3.8 million (31 March 2022 § 3.8 million)

Consequent to High Court Orders. two Show Cause Notices (*SCN’) issued for the period Dec™13 to Feb 15 have been adjudicated confirming the demand S 21.6
million {31 March 2023: $21.6 million} plus applicable interest and penalty. Company s share in the same 15 § 7.6 million (31 Macch 2023: S 7.6 million).
Consequently. Vedanta Ltd erstwhile Caim India Limited has challenged the cited High Court orders and two SCN's for the period Dec’13 to Feb' 15 before the
Honble Supreme Court in Jan'2017. Stay has been granted by Supreme Court vide order dated 06-02-2017. Additionally. Statutory Appeals have also been filed
before CESTAT Delhi against the demand order pertaining to period Dec’13 to Feb'135. Also. the Bench mentioned that pre-deposit is the mandatory requirement
under the law for maintainability of the Appeal before CESTAT.

Accordingly. pre deposit has been made and the Honble Bench was pleased to direct the Registry to register the appeals and list them for hearing in due course.

Matter heard in CESTAT on 03th August 2022 and has been kept in abeyance until the issue attains finality before the Hon'ble Supreme Court.
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Tax holiday on gas production

Section 80-IB (9} of the Income Tax Act. 1961 allows the deduction of 1007, of profits from the commercial production or refining of mineral oil. The term “mineral
oil” is not defined but has always been understood to refer to both oil and gas. either separately or collectively.

The 2008 Indian Finance Bill appeared to remove thus deduction by stating [without amending section &0-IB (9)] that ~for the purpose of section 30-IB (9). the em
‘mineral 0il” does not include perreleum and natural gas. unlike in other sections of the Act™. Subsequent announcements by the Finance Minister and the Minisory
of Petroleum and Natural Gas have confirmed that tax holiday would be available on production of crude oil but have continued to exclude gas.

We have favorable decisions from the first appellate authority. However. the tax authorities have challenged it before ITAT (Income Tax Appellate Tribunal).
Matters are pending before ITAT and have been adjourned sine die. In another similar case. the Gujarat High Court has also held that tax holiday benefit would
exrend to production of gas.

In the event this challenge s unsuccessiul. the potential liability for tax and related interest on tax holiday claimed on gas is approximately S 5.5 million (31 March
2023: 8§ 5.5 million).

Centractor Claims

Company is subject 1o various contractor claims and exposures which arise in the ordinary course of conducting its business. These are generally claims arising
either after the settlement of dues or claims being made without performance under the contract on the contractor’s part. In addition. there are ceriain cases
pertaining to Land ROU disputes. The approximate salue of claims against the Company excluding claims shown above is S 24.28 mullion {31 March 2023: 8 28.19
million).

21 Related Party Transactions

The following tablz provides the nature of relationship with Group companies :

Name of Company

Cairn India Holdings Limited Immediate Parent Company

Vedania Limited [ndran Paren: of Catrn India Holdings Linuted
Vedania Resources Limited Helding company

Volcan Investmeents Limited Ultimate controlling entity

The following table provides the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with Greup companies during vear and the balances outstanding at the
Balance Sheet date:

Mar'24 Mar'23
S'000 000
Transactions during the period
Dividend paid 265.886 348.278
Brand fees paid to Vedanta Resources Limited 29.963 18413
Issue of Equity shares - 16.000 333.326
RJ Guarantee Conumnission 2.500 2.500
Mar’24 Mar'23
Outstanding balances $*000 S'000
Balances amounts owed to Caim India Holding 4 74
Limited
Balances amounts owed (receivable) to from 7418 -15.410
Vedanta Resources Limited
1 1

Balances amounts owed by Vedanta Limited

* The Company paid total dividend of § 265.886 million (year ended 31 March 2023: §348.278 million) 1o its holding company. Caim India Holdings Limited.
During year ended 31 March 2024 .the Company Issued [2.892.828 ordinary shares equivalent o USD 16.000.000.t0 its parent company. Caim India Holdings
Limited. Also the company passed special resolution to reduce its share capital balance by cancelling and extinguishing 119.009.83% ordinary shares.

During year ended 31 March 2024. the Company issued 12.892.828 (March 2023: 277.037.390) equity shares of § 16.000.000 (March 2023: S 333.325.134 )
10 its parent company. Cairn India Holdings Limited .

Being in non-executive position no directors were entitled to any remuneration from the Company. Professional fee paid to the consultants for their directorship
services to the Company amounted w0 S 38.019 for year ended 31 March 2024 (the yvear ended 31 March 2023: S 15.571).

The amounts outstanding are unsecured. repayable on demand and will be settled in cash. Interest. where charged. is at market rates.
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Financial Risk Management: Objectives and Policies
Cairn India Holdings Limited. Company s immediate Parent. manages the financial risk of the Company along with of other subsidiaries within its control.

The Company’s primary financial instruments compnse cash and short and medium-term deposits. loans and other recervables and {inancial liabilities held ai
amortised cost. The Company”s strategy has been to finance its operations through a mixture of retained pr and bank borrowings. Other alternatives. su
equily finance and project finance are reviewed by the Board. when appropriate. to fund substantial acquisiuons of o and gas development projects.

The Company treasury function is responsible for managing investment and funding requirements including banking and cash flow monitoring. It must also recugnise
and manage mterest and foreign exchange exposure whilst ensuring that the Company has adequate Liquidity at all times i order to meet its immediate cash
requirements.

The Company may from time to rmz. opt to use derivative financial insiruments to minimise its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange and interest rates. During
the vear. the Company did not enier into forw ard foreign exchange opiions to hedge the exposure of future Indian Rupee requirerents.

The mam risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are liquidity risk. interest rate risk. foreign currency risk and credit risk. The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and these are summarised below:

Liquidity risk

The Caim India Holdings Group currently has surplus cash which it has placed in a combination of money market hquidity funds. fixed term deposits. mutual funds
and marketable bonds with a number of Intemanenal and Indian banks. financial mstitutions and corporates. ensuring sufficient liquidity to enable the Caim India
Holdings Group to meet its short medium-term expenditure requirements

The Cairn India Holdings Group is conscious of the curremt enviromment and constantly monitors counzerpariy risk. Policies are in place to limut counterparty
exposure. The Cairn India Holdings Group menitors counterparties using published ratings and other measures where appropriate.

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual mawrity date is given in the
table below:

{in S*0¢0)
At 31 March 2024 <1 year 1-3 years 3-3 years >5 years

3 3 Total
Trade and other Pavables 429.624 - - - 429.624

Lease Liabifiv N - - - -
429.624 - - - 429.624
At 31 March 2023 <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years >3 years Total
rade and other Pavabtes 339,652 - - - 339.652
ease Liability (1] - - - 0
539,632 - - - 539.652
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Interest rate risk

Surplus funds are placed on short medium-term deposits at fixed floating rates. It 1s Cain India Holdings Group’s policy 1o deposit funds with hanks or other

financial nstutions that offer the most compeutive interest rate at time of
minimise liquidity and counterparty nsk.

ssue. The requirement to achieve an acceptable vield is balanced against the need

Short medium-term borrowmg arrangements are available at floanng rates. The reasury functions may from tume to time opt to manage a proportion of the interest
costs by using derivative financial instruments like interest rare swaps. At this time. however. there are no such instruments.

The exposure of the company s financial assets to wterest rate nisk is as follows:

{in $°000)
Mar-24 Mar-23
. " Non-interest 5 3 Non-interest
Floating rate Fixed rate S er'es Floating rate Fixed rate .
bearing bearing
Fmancial Assets 136.169 61,097 554332 131.832 50.263 463591
The exposure of the company s financial liabilines to interest rate risk is as follows:
(in $°000)
Mar-24 Mar-23
. . Non-interest . . Nouo-interest
Floating rate Fixed rate on=n er'es Floating rate Fixed rate .
i bearing bearing
Financial Liabilines - 6428 423196 - 19.833 319817

Corsidering the ret asset posinion as at 31 March 2024 and the mvestment 1n liquid investmenss. foreign ¢
mierest raies would result m a net profit and any decrease in interest rates would result in @ net loss. The se
SXPOSUre [o inferest rates at the balance sheet date.

The below table illustrates the
management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates.
(in $°000)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Effect on profit for  Effect on profit

Increase in interest rates

the year for the vear

0.30% 631 659
362 1.319

2,333 2.637

A reduction in nterest rates would have an equal and opposite effect on the financial statements.

UITSLC

bonds and foreign mutual funds. any increase
nsItvity analysis balow has been detenmnined based on the

impact of a (.37 to 2.070 increase mn interest rate of floatng rate of financial assets liabilities(net) on profit and represents
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Foreign currency risk

The Company manages exposures that anse from non-functional currency receipts and payments by matching receipts and paymerts in the same currency and actrvely
¢ the restdual net posiuon. Generally. the exposure has been limited given that receipts and payments have mosily been in US dollars and the fimetional
curraney of the Com

pany is US dollars.

In order to mumnise Company”s exposure 1 foreign currency fluctuations. currencs assats are matched with currency liabilities by borrowing or entering into foreign
exchange contracts in the applicable cumency if deemed appropriate. The Company also aims o hold working capiral balances in the same currency as functional

urrency. thereby matching the reporting currency and functional currency of most companies in the Company. This muumises the impact of foreign exchange
movements on the Company”™s Statement of Financial Poston.

Where residual net exposures do exist and they are considered significant the Company may from time to time. opt to use denvative financial insTruments t minimuse
its exposure to fluctuations i foreign exchange and interest rates.

s in different currencies are as follows:

The carmying amount of the Compam s financial assets and liabiliti

(in $°000)
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23

Finamcial Assets Financial Liabilities  Financial Assets Financial Liabilities

USD 345620 267,338 202320 370.770
GBP 23.016 11,692 24756 11,363
INR 378491 147,972 328212 133971
Others 2471 2424 2.320 35
Total 731.598 429,626 647.708 539,652

The Company”s exposurs to foreign currency arises where a company holds monetary assets and habilities denonunated in a currency ditfferent to the functional
currency. Set out below is the impact of 2 107 change m the US dollar on profit (loss) ansing as a result of the revaluation of the compam s foreign curency
finarecia! mstruments:

(in $*000)
31-Mar-24

Effect of 16°. strengthening of US dollar

Closing exchange rate -
on net earning

INR 835416 23082
GBP 1.2% 1353

31-Mar-24

Effeet of 10°, strengthening of US dollar

Closing exchange rate ;
. on net earning

INR 821643 17424
GBP 0.81 1.359

The sensiivities are based on finarcial assets and Labilities held at 31 March 2024 where balances are rot denominatad in the company's functional currency. The
sensitivities do not take into account the company’s sales and costs and the results of sensitivities could change due to other factors such as change in the value of
is. A 107 depreciation of the USS would have an equal and oppostte effect on the

financial assets and labilities as a result of non-foreign exchange influenced facto

company s financial instruments.
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Credit risk

Credit nisk from mnvestments with banks and other financial instututions 1s managed by the Treasury functions in acvordance with the Board approved policies.
[nvestments of surplus funds are only made with approted counterparties who meet the appropriate rating and or other criteriz and are only made within approved
liruts. The respective Boards continually re-assess the Group's policy and updare as required. The limits are set to minimise the concemtration of risks and therefore
mitigate {inancial loss through counterparsy failure.

At the year end the Company does not have any significant concentrations of bad debt risk other than that disclosed 1n nate 10 & note 11, Also. 1n case of receivables

considered good there is low credit nsk.

The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrving value as at the Balance Sheat date.

Capital management

The objective of the Company’s capital management structurs is 10 ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity within the Company to carmy out committed w ork
programme requirements. The Company onitors the long-term cash flow requirements of the business in order 1o assess the Tequirement for changes to the capital
structure to meet that objactive and to maintain flexibility.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it. in hght of changes o econemic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the
Company may adjust the Jividend payment to shareholders. return capital. issue new shares for cash. repay debt. put in place new debt facilities or undertake other

such restructuring activities as appropriate.

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes dunng year ended 31 March 2024,

Financial Instruments

Company’s financial assets and liabilities. together with their fair valass are as follows:

Financial assets

Fair value through Total carrying

Amortised cost Total fair value

profit or loss value
As at March 2024
$'600 $°000 $°000 $°000
Cash and cash equinalents - 27 27 27
Trade and other receivables - 334303 334,305
Other assets - 56.736 36,786
Short — Tenm investments 79.383 61.097 140,480
79.383 672.215 751.598

Financial liabilities

Fair value through : Total carrying :
= Amortised cost ——— Total fair value

A N ar R0 profit or loss value

5000 $'000 $7°000 s$°000
Jont Operaton wade pavables - 264.743 264743 264,743
Dues 1o Joint Venwure Pariner = 18,393 18,393 18.395
Operatioral buyers™ cradit suppliers” credit - 6428 6,428 6.428
Amounts owed to group companzes - T493 TA93 2493
Profit petroleum pavable - 132.384 132384 132,534
Other Liabilities - 180 180 180
Lease Liability - - - -

- 429.625 429.625 429,625
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Financial assets

Fair value through . Total carrying "
=" Amortsed cost i Total fair value

prefit or loss value

As at Mareh 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000
Cash and cash equivalents - i 30248
Trade and other recervables - 325,087 325027
Other assets - 135930 133.930
Short — Term investments $6.239 136.504 136,304
86.239 647,709 647.709

Financial liabilities

Fair value through 3 Total carrying .
=" Amortised cost i = Total fair value

profit or loss value
As at March 2023
$°000 §°000 5000 $°000
Joint Operation trade payvables - 377.914 377914 377914
Dues to Joint Venrure Parmer - 17493 17.493 17493
Operationai buyers’ credit suppliers” credit - 19.833 19.833 19833
Amounts owed to group companies - 109 109 109
Profit petroleum payable - 124187 124,187 124187
Otker habilities - 114 104 114
Lease Liability - N = =
- 539.652 539.652 539.632

All of the above financial assets are cwrrent and unimpaired with the exception of Joint Operation trade receivables. An analysis of the ageing of Jomt Operation wade
receivables 13 provided 1n note 10 & note 11.

[nvestmients in equuy of subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures which are carriad at cost are rot covered under IFRS 7 and hence unt bean included abone

Fair value hierarchy
[FRS 13 requires additional information regarding the methodologies emploved to measure the fair value of financial instruments which are recognised or disclosed in
the accounts. These methedologies are categorised per the standard as:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: farr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observablz for the asset or hability, erther directly (1.e. as prices) or
indirectly (1e. denved from price): and

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from valuation rechniques that include inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

Fair Value Hierarchy
As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss
Short term invesiments — [nvestments in
Murual funds #1383 - i
Tatal 79,383 - -

Fair Value Hierarchy
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss
Short term investments — [nvestments in M %6.239 - -

Total 86.239 - -
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In an orderly transaction

The fair value of the financial assets and liabiliies are at the amount that would be received 1o sell an asser and patd to transfer a Ii:

between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptivss were used to estimate the fair valaes:

+  Ipvestments traded m active markets are determined by reference to quotes from the financial instiwutions: for example: Net assat value (NAV) for i estments in
mutual funds declared by murual fund house. For other listed securities traded in markets which are not active. the quoted price is used wheraver the pricing
mechanism is same as for other marketable securities traded in active markets. Other current investments are valued by referring to market inputs including quotes.
rades. poll. primary issuances for securiues and eor underiying securines issued by the same or similar issuer for similar mawrities and movement in benchmark

+ Financ:al assets forming part of Trade and other recervables. cash and cash equivalents (inciuding restncted cash and cash equivalenss). bank deposits. and financial
liabilities formirg part of trade and other payables and short-term borrowings: Approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term matirines of these
ISTUments.

= Other non-curren: financial assets and finarcial liabilities: Fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow model with marke
assumptions. unless the cammving value 1s considered to approximate to {air value.

+ Long-term fixed-rate 2nd vanable rate borrowings: Listed bonds are far valued based on the prevailing market price. For all other
long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings. either the carrying amount approximates the fair value, or fair value has been
estimated by discounting the expacted future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return adjusted for
the appropriate credit spread.

+ Quoted financial assat investments: Fair value is derived from guoted market prices in active markets.
For all other financial instruments, the carryving amount 1s excher the fair value. or approximares the fair value.

nt for derivatives designated in hedge

&

The changes m counterparty credit risk had no matenal effect on the hedge effectiveness assessm
relationship and the value of other financial instruments recogmsed at fair value.
The estumated fair value amounts as at 31 March 2024 have been measured as at that date. As such. the fair values of these [Inancial

instruments schsequent to reporting date may be different than the amounts reported at each vear-end.

Ultimate Parent Company

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Vedanta Limited which m tum is 2 subsidiary of Vedanta Resources Limited (erstwhile
Vedanta Resources Ple.). Volean Investmems Limited (“Volcan™) is the ultimate controlling entity and controls Vedanta Resources
Linured. Volcan is controlled by persons relared to the Executive Chairman. Mr. Anil Agarwal. Volcan Invesmments Limited is
incorperated in the Bahamas and does not produce Group zccounts.

The results of the Company are consolidated 1nto mtermediate parent company. viz. Vedanta Resources Limited. The registered office
of Vedanta Resources Limited. is 5th Floor. 6 St. Andrew Street. London. EC4A 3AE. Copies of Vedanta Resources Limited's
financial statements are available on its website.

Subsequent events
No transactions have occurred since the date of Balunce Sheet or are perding
1o the accounting estimares and disclosures included in the financial statements at that date or for the penied then ended .

a1 would have a material effect or requires adjustment
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